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Nelson County Courthouse ς Postcards from the Past 
[ŀƴŘ ǎƻǳǘƘ ƻŦ [ƻǾƛƴƎΩǎ DŀǇ ǿŀǎ ŘŜǎƛƎƴŀǘŜŘ ŀǎ 
the site for the county seat in 1808 and the 
resultant village of Lovingston was recognized by 
the General Assembly in 1809 as the county 
seat.   A άtǳōƭƛŎ [ƻǘ ƻŦ one hundred yards 
squareέ was recorded ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƭŜǊƪΩǎ ƻŦŦƛŎŜ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ 
purpose of constructing a county courthouse. 
The building construction began in 1809 and 
completed in 1810 at a cost of $3289.65.  The 
plans were developed by Shelton Crostwait, one 
of the county justices with George Varnum as 
the supervising builder.  The first court was held 
in the new courthouse on February 26, 1810. 

                   Original Courthouse - 1809 
For over two hundred years the courtroom has 
been in continuous use since its completion. 
 
The stucco covered brick structure is a 
traditional town-hall type with a front-gabled 
façade and a five-bay arched arcade. 
 
The first enlargement of the structure occurred 
in 1940 when the courtroom was lengthened 
ten feet and a rectangular addition was added 
to the northern end.  Further renovations and 
additions were made in 1968 and 1975 when 
the back wing was added to accommodate for 
more office space.   
 
The courthouse was placed on the Virginia 
Historic Landmarks Register and the National 
Register of Historic Places in 1973.  Lovingston 
became a Historic District in 2005 and included 
the courthouse and surrounding buildings and 
statures on the courthouse property.  The old 
ƧŀƛƭΣ ƻƭŘ ŎƭŜǊƪΩǎ ƻŦŦƛŎŜΣ ǘƘŜ ²ƘƛǘŜƘŜŀŘ ƭŀǿ ƻŦŦƛŎŜΣ 
the Confederate statue and the Camille 
Memorial make up the courthouse complex. 
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Jeffersonian Jail - left of entrance 

More Changes with Additions and Renovations in 2010-2012 

     

 

About five years ago plans were made to construction an addition to the courthouse to the rear, a new 
ŜƴǘǊŀƴŎŜ ŀƴŘ ǊŜƴƻǾŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ƻƭŘ Ƨŀƛƭ όƳƻǎǘ ǊŜŎŜƴǘƭȅ ǘƘŜ ǎƘŜǊƛŦŦΩǎ ŘŜǇŀǊǘƳŜƴǘ ƻŦŦƛŎŜύΦ  ¢ƘŜ ƴŜŎŜǎǎƛǘȅ ŦƻǊ ŀ 
secure entrance into the courthouse was of major importance.   Construction will be complete in the next few 
months.  The renovations and additions carefully preserved the historic portion of the building.  New 
sidewalks and steps, the addition of park benches around the courthouse grounds and the flag-graced 
entrance add to the details of the new look around the 1810 Nelson County Courthouse. 
 

The Jeffersonian design jail, a single-story white building is 
believed to be one of the last buildings that Thomas Jefferson 
designed, as referenced in the Lovingston Historic District survey.  
The jail was commissioned and designed in 1823 and Jefferson 
died in 1826.  The building is currently being preserved and 
renovated for future county office space.   
 
Union Troops enter the Courthouse during the Civil War  
A common law book gave evident to the fact that Union troops 

ǿŜǊŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ /ƭŜǊƪΩǎ ƻŦŦƛŎŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎƻǳǊǘƘƻǳǎŜΦ Several pages of the 

volume were heavily blotted with ink.   Appearing on one page 

was ǘƘŜ ƴƻǘŀǘƛƻƴ ά9ǾƛŘŜƴŎŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ conduct of General Phillip 

{ƘŜǊƛŘŀƴΩǎ ¢ǊƻƻǇǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƭŜǊƪΩǎ ƻŦŦƛŎŜ ƻŦ ǘƘƛǎ ŎƻǳǊǘΦέ  The next 

page contained ŀ ƳƻǊŜ ǇƻƛƴǘŜŘ ŎŀǇǘƛƻƴΥ ά¸ŀƴƪŜŜ ±ŀƴŘŀƭƛǎƳ-

{ƘŜǊƛŘŀƴΩǎ ǊŀƛŘŜǊǎ aŀǊŎƘ пΣ мусрΦέ 

 

Sources for Nelson County Courthouse historical information may 

be found at: The Virginia Department of Historic Resources site ς 

historic register  <http://www.dhr.virginia.gov/> and  

The Nelson County Heritage Book (2000) 

 

 2007 New Entrance into the Courthouse - 2012 
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Robert Whitehead ς A Prominent Nelson County Lawyer 

Born in Nelson County (1897), Robert Whitehead became one of 
bŜƭǎƻƴ /ƻǳƴǘȅΩǎ Ƴƻǎǘ ǇǊƻƳƛƴŜƴǘ ŎƛǘƛȊŜƴǎΣ ŀǎ ŀ ƭŀǿȅŜǊΣ Ŏƻǳƴǘȅ 
/ƻƳƳƻƴǿŜŀƭǘƘΩǎ !ǘǘƻǊƴŜȅΣ ŀƴŘ ƳŜƳōŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ±ƛǊƎƛƴƛŀ IƻǳǎŜ ƻŦ 
Delegates.  He gained a statewide reputation for his skill as a state 
legislator and considered a run for the Governor of Virginia. 

Robert was educated in the public schools of Nelson County, 
graduated from Lynchburg High School, and taught for one year at the 
aƻǳƴǘŀƛƴ /ƻǾŜ {ŎƘƻƻƭ ό{ǘŜǾŜƴΩǎ /ƻǾŜ ƛƴ bŜƭǎƻƴ /ƻΦύΦ  IŜ ōŜƎŀƴ ƭŀǿ 
school at The University of Virginia but had his education interrupted 
for volunteer service in the Army during WW I.  He returned to school 
and finished his law degree at UVA in 1919.   

His law career began for a brief time in Lynchburg as a partner of J. 
Linsley Coleman, Jr. but joined his father, Stuart Baldwin Whitehead in 
[ƻǾƛƴƎǎǘƻƴ ƛƴ мфнмΦ  IŜ ǎǳŎŎŜŜŘŜŘ Ƙƛǎ ŦŀǘƘŜǊ ŀǎ /ƻƳƳƻƴǿŜŀƭǘƘΩǎ 
Attorney and resigned in 1941 to be elected in 1942 for the Virginia 
House of Delegates.  He remained in that office until his death in 1960. 

ά²ƘƛƭŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ DŜƴŜǊŀƭ !ǎǎŜƳōƭȅ ƘŜ ǿŀǎ ŀ ŎƘŀƳǇƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǇǳōƭƛŎ ǎŎƘƻƻƭǎ ŀƴŘ ƳŜƴǘŀƭ ƛƴǎǘƛǘǳǘƛƻƴǎΦ  IŜ ǿŀǎ ŀƴ 
influential member of the Finance Committee and Chairman of the Education Committee.  Noted for his ability 
as an orator and debater he was dǳōōŜŘ ΨǘƘŜ tŀǘǊƛŎƪ IŜƴǊȅ ƻŦ Ƙƛǎ ƎŜƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴΩΦέ όbŜƭǎƻƴ IŜǊƛǘŀƎŜ .ƻƻƪ ς 2000) 

Three generations of the Whitehead family occupied the 
ƻŦŦƛŎŜ ƻŦ /ƻƳƳƻƴǿŜŀƭǘƘ !ǘǘƻǊƴŜȅΩǎ ŦƻǊ тн ȅŜŀǊǎΦ  Iƛǎ 
father, Stuart Baldwin Whitehead and his grandfather, 
Robert Whitehead preceded him in the office.  The 
Whitehead Office building on the courthouse green in 
Lovingston was in continuous use by the Whitehead 
ŦŀƳƛƭȅ ŦǊƻƳ муро ǳƴǘƛƭ wƻōŜǊǘ ²ƘƛǘŜƘŜŀŘΩǎ ŘŜŀǘƘ ƛƴ мфслΦ   
The photo at the right was taken by Lee Dietrich ca. 1970 
and looks through an arch on the courthouse arcade. 

                                                                                                             

Whitehead lived in Lovingston where he raised his family.  
He married Sallie Carter from Bryant (Nelson Co.) and had 
two daughters, Ann Carter Whitehead (Thomas) and Maria 
.ŀƭƭŀǊŘ ²ƘƛǘŜƘŜŀŘ όDǊƻǾŜύΦ  ¢ƘŜȅ ōǳƛƭǘ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƘƻǳǎŜΣ ά²ƛƴŘȅ 
wƛŘƎŜέ ƛƴ мфнр ƴŜŀǊ [ƻǾƛƴƎǎǘƻƴ ŀƴŘ is now the home of 
Mrs. Sam Eggleston.    After the death of his wife Sallie, he 
later married Myra Loving McGinnis.  He was a life time 
member of Trinity Episcopal Church in Arrington, serving 
on its vestry and teaching Sunday School. His portrait 
hangs in the courthouse along with his father and 
grandfather. 


